
 

Rother District Council 
 

 

 
At the discretion of the Leader, the order of the items set out in the agenda may be varied 

This agenda can be made available in large print, Braille, 
audiotape/CD or in another language upon request. 

For all enquiries please contact julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk 
01424 787813 

Rother District Council aspiring to deliver… 
an Efficient, Flexible and Effective Council, Sustainable Economic Prosperity, 

Stronger, Safer Communities and a Quality Physical Environment 

 

Cabinet 
Date and Time - Monday 3 June 2019 – 11:00am 
 

Venue - Council Chamber 
 

 

 
Councillors appointed to the Committee: 
Councillor D.B. Oliver (Leader), Mrs C.A. Bayliss, J.H.F. Brewerton, C.A. Clark, 
Mrs D.C. Earl-Williams, K.M. Field, S.M. Prochak (Deputy Leader) and J. Vine-
Hall. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.   MINUTES   

 To authorise the Leader to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 
2019 as a correct record of the proceedings. 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS   

 To consider such other items as the Leader decides are urgent and due 
notice of which has been given to the Head of Paid Service by 9:00am on the 
day of the meeting. 

 

4.   URGENT DECISIONS   

 The Leader to give details of those reports that have been referred to the 
Chairman of the Council to consider designating as urgent, in accordance 
with Rule 17 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within 
Part 4 of the Council Constitution, and to which the call-in procedure will not 
therefore apply. 

 

5.   DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS   

 To receive any disclosure by Members of personal and disclosable pecuniary 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and whether the 
Member regards the personal interest as prejudicial under the terms of the 
Code of Conduct.  Members are reminded of the need to repeat their 
declaration immediately prior to the commencement of the item in question. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk


 
 

 

For details of the Council, its Constitution and meetings visit the 
Rother District Council Website www.rother.gov.uk 

(Enquiries – please ask for Julie Hollands – Tel: 01424 787813) 

 

6.   RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE TOURISM TASK AND FINISH GROUP  
(Pages 1 - 8) 

7.   CALL-IN AND URGENCY PROCEDURES  (Pages 9 - 10) 

8.   ROLES AND FUNCTIONS  (Pages 11 - 16) 

9.   IRRECOVERABLE DEBTS  (Pages 17 - 18) 

10.   TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE  (Pages 19 - 42) 

 
 
 
 
 
Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director 

Agenda Despatch Date: 23 May 2019 
 

http://www.rother.gov.uk/


cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

Rother District Council 
 
Report to  - Cabinet  

Date  - 3 June 2019 

Report of the  - Executive Director  

Subject  - Recommendations of the Tourism Task and Finish Group 
 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 29 April 2019, considered a 
report on the recommendations of the Tourism Task and Finish Group.  The 
recommendation and minute arising is reproduced below. 
 

 
Recommendation to COUNCIL: That: 
 
1) the draft Visitor Economy Chapter of the Economic Regeneration Strategy 

attached at Appendix A be approved and adopted as amended, to include 
reference to Skills East Sussex and Parish Councils. 

 
AND 
 
It be RESOLVED: That the following recommendations of the Tourism Task and 
Finish Group be approved: 
 
1) Marketing Recommendations: 

i. The Council enters into a three year funding agreement with the 1066 
Country Partnership at the present level of £50,000 per annum, subject 
to a commitment to increasing private sector contributions year on 
year. 

 
ii. The Council’s Lead Member for Public Realm, Culture and Tourism 

continues to work alongside officers to monitor the 1066 Country 
Partnership and contribute to monitoring and refreshing the 
Partnership’s marketing strategy ensuring due consideration is paid to 
the highlighted markets. 

 
iii. The Council’s Lead Member for Public Realm, Culture and Tourism to 

report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on an annual basis on 
the performance of the 1066 Partnership. 

 
Visitor Information Recommendations: 
iv. The visitor information services contract be reviewed and a report and 

recommendations be brought to Overview and Scrutiny Committee by 
June 2020, in time to re-tender the service prior to expiry of the current 
contract in March 2021. 

 
v. Officers explore the option to widen the procurement to encompass the 

whole of 1066 Country. 
 

Research Recommendations: 
vi. The Council, with Partners, continues to support visitor research to 

inform future decision making. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

Accommodation Recommendations: 
vii. Officers continue to work with developers and landowners to 

encourage the development of more serviced accommodation in the 
district, particularly in Bexhill, in accordance with Local Plan policies 
and Corporate Plan objectives. 

 
Events Recommendations: 
viii. The Council consolidates the visitor events funding into a single 

programme that is available to organisations and event promoters from 
across the whole of the district.     

 
ix. The current policy and guidelines for the allocation of event funding be 

revised as follows: 
 

a) two bidding rounds of funding to be offered in each financial year, in 
March and September;  

b) weightings to be introduced within a scoring system for funding 
applications, with a greater weighting awarded to those events 
planned for shoulder-season; 

c) Council funding to be awarded to event organisers who can show 
growth within their event to increase visitor numbers to the district 
and add to the local economy; and 

d) consideration be given to partnership funding for events from East 
Sussex County Council and / or from Parish and Town Councils.  

 
The new arrangements to come into effect from 1 April 2020.  
 

x. Council owned Car Parks should only be used as venues for events 
when it is considered absolutely necessary for the functioning of the 
event. 

 
Strategic / Partnership Working Recommendations: 
xi. The Council continues to work with local, regional and national partners 

to develop, deliver and promote tourism projects and programmes 
relating to the visitor economy and cultural tourism. 

 
xii. The Council to work with Skills East Sussex and local education 

providers to promote opportunities for careers in the tourism sector. 
 

Budget and Funding Recommendations: 
xiii. Officers continue to explore opportunities to attract external funding in 

support of the visitor economy in recognition of a finite budget and 
pressures on the Council’s finances.  Any savings made within the 
tourism budget to be allocated back into tourism and directed towards 
events. 

 
xiv. Consideration be given to increasing the tourism budget in future years 

by the rate of inflation. 
 
xv. The Chambers of Commerce in Battle, Bexhill and Rye, and any other 

interested parties, be invited to meet with the Lead Member for Public 
Realm, Culture and Tourism to explore their interest in developing 
Business Improvements Districts in their locality. 

 
 

Page 2



cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

Sharing Economy Recommendations: 
xvi. The Council lobbies with partners for greater regulation of the sharing 

economy, with a preference for a self-regulating scheme. 
 
xvii. The Council consider what resources would be required with the 

introduction of a statutory registration scheme for tourism 
accommodation, to be offset by registration charges and report back to 
the Licensing and General Purposes Committee. 

 
xviii. The Council offers support to businesses to capitalise on new media 

platforms, including shared economy platforms and how to adapt and 
diversify their product with partners. 

 
xix. A promotional campaign to be developed to ensure tourism 

accommodation property owners are aware of their responsibilities and 
obligations. 

 
xx. The costs of business support and the promotional campaign to be met 

from the existing tourism budget.  
 
xxi. The use of sharing economy platforms be acknowledged across the 

district through the 1066 Country campaign, but property owners be 
required to comply with legislation in order to register. 

 
2) the Tourism Task and Finish Group, having fulfilled its Terms of Reference, 

be dissolved. 
 

 
OSC18/52. RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE TOURISM TASK AND FINISH 

GROUP  
 
Members received the report of the Executive Director detailing the 
recommendations arising from the Tourism Task and Finish Group 
(TTFG) and the recommended revised Tourism chapter of the 
Council’s Economic Regeneration Strategy. 
 
The Group held six meetings between August 2018 and March 2019, 
with four meetings focusing on different aspects of the visitor economy.  
Partners, stakeholders and businesses were invited as appropriate to 
present to the Group and take part in the discussions. 
 
Each meeting resulted in a number of recommendations coming 
forward.  At its final meeting in March 2019 the TTFG reviewed and 
consolidated these recommendations and the final list of 
recommendations which was attached as Appendix 2 to the report.  
 
The TTFG was also tasked with updating the Tourism chapter of the 
Council’s Economic Regeneration Strategy.  This was considered 
having regard to the deliberations of the TTFG and the 
recommendations arising from these, and the draft chapter was 
attached as Appendix 3 to the report for recommendation to Cabinet 
and Full Council. 
 
The recommendations and the draft chapter took into account the 
changes that had taken place in the visitor economy over recent years; Page 3



cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

in particular the emergence of new technologies and the opportunities 
and challenges that this presented to the local visitor economy.  The 
recommendations also acknowledged that the Council’s capacity and 
priorities were of necessity shaped by the resources at its disposal; and 
that the Council had to target its activity at those areas where it could 
have the greatest impact. 
 
The Chairman of the TTFG led Members through the Group’s 
recommendations, thanked TTFG Members, Councillors Mrs Hart and 
Hollidge for their attendance, those who attended and presented 
findings to the TTFG at the meetings and officers for their support. 
 
Members had an opportunity to put forward questions and the following 
points were noted: 
 

 Members agreed that 1066 Country Marketing be asked to provide 
an update on how the Council’s funding of £50,000 was spent to 
ensure value for money; 

 Members agreed that the draft Visitor Economy Chapter include  
reference to Skills East Sussex (a sub-section of Team East 
Sussex) who worked with education providers to promote career 
opportunities in the tourism sector; 

 it was noted that Business Improvement Districts had worked well in 
other authorities; 

 Members agreed that a review of the recommendations be carried 
out after a year, as the industry was constantly changing and 
growing; 

 the Economic Regeneration Strategy was a high level strategy and 
the tourism chapter recognised Rother District Council as an 
enabler, supporting partnerships such as 1066 Country Marketing 
through funding and officer time; 

 the importance of the Public Realm was implicit in the Strategy; 

 Members noted Government were being asked to review 
regulations governing those providing shared accommodation and 
considered it good practice to introduce a self-regulation scheme for 
the sharing economy tourism accommodation and noted that work 
would not be carried out to identify accommodation; 

 Members were pleased to note the recommended changes to event 
funding and the introduction of a scoring system for funding 
applications, with a greater weighting awarded to those events 
planned for the shoulder season; 

 Members agreed that Parish Councils be added to the draft Visitor 
Economy Chapter as having a role in tourism. 

 
(Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda Item 5.1). 

 
Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director 
  

Page 4



cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

Appendix A 
 
Draft Visitor Economy Chapter to the Council’s Economic Regeneration 
Strategy  
 
Support the visitor economy 
 
Why? 
 
The total value of tourism activity in Rother is £329.2 million, which supports over 
5,500 full time jobs, equating to 29% of all jobs within the district.  Tourism is a key 
contributor to the district’s economic and social wellbeing.  It supports businesses, 
both directly and indirectly, and has an interdependent relationship with a range of 
sectors, including farming, transport, retail, food and drink, arts and museums and 
culture.   
 
Tourism helps to create a positive image for the district which encourages inward 
investment and provides a great place for locals to live and work.   
 
How is this achieved? 
 

 By effective promotion of the area to visitors.  

 By the availability of good quality information that meets customer 
requirements. 

 By maintaining and improving the range and quality of the tourism offer, 
including attractions, accommodation and customer service. 

 By enabling a range of quality events and festivals throughout the year to 
attract visitors. 

 By supporting businesses to take advantage of growth areas and new 
technologies. 

 By working in partnership to develop new products and services, particularly 
those that use, protect and promote the natural environment. 

 
Who else is involved? 
 

 Private sector businesses, including accommodation providers, attractions 
and other service sector businesses, events promoters and organisers.  

 Local Authorities including Hastings Borough Council, Wealden District 
Council, East Sussex County Council and other neighbouring authorities.  

 Parish Town Councils. 

 Chambers of Commerce and other business representative organisations. 

 Regional bodies, including Tourism South East, Skills East Sussex, Visit 
Britain, Visit England, South East Local Enterprise Partnership and relevant 
sectorial sub groups.   

 Cross-sector partnerships, including 1066 Country Marketing and other local 
marketing and tourism partnerships.  

 
The Council’s Role 
 
As an advocate: 
 
We will promote the importance of the tourism industry when representing Rother in 
policy discussions at regional and national level. 
 

Page 5



cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

We will encourage growth in the number of high value-added visitors to Rother, in 
order to increase spend per head and maximise the benefit of visitors to the local 
economy.    
 
We will continue to lobby for resources to support the development of the tourism 
sector, particularly around support for emerging sectors and trends in the digital 
environment. 
 
We will help to raise awareness amongst peer-to-peer accommodation providers of 
their legal duties and liabilities when offering accommodation, especially in relation to 
fire safety and health and safety.  
 
We will lobby, with partners, for greater regulation of peer-to-peer platforms that 
promote tourism accommodation (such as Airbnb), to protect consumers and ensure 
that regulations are applied consistently for all visitor accommodation providers. 
 
We will lobby for greater awareness and uptake of careers in the tourism sector. 
 
We will help support the tourism sector in understanding the implications of macro-
economic forces driving changes in the visitor economy (such as new technologies, 
Brexit). 
 
As a service provider and legislator: 
 
We will continue to commission and fund visitor research to inform future decision 
making and service delivery and share information through our networks.   
 
We will review the delivery of the Visitor Information Services provision in 
preparation for when the current contract expires in 2021, having regard to trends in 
visitor behaviour and requirements and the advances of digital technology and new 
media channels.  Consideration will also be given to expanding the provision through 
working with partners. 
 
We will offer support to businesses to capitalise on new media platforms, including 
shared economy platforms and how to adapt and diversify their product. 
 
We will ensure that the Local Plan encourages the provision of new quality 
accommodation across the district with a focus on good quality serviced 
accommodation, particularly in central Bexhill.   
 
In the absence of national regulatory controls, we will consider implementing a local 
self-regulating scheme for peer-to-peer accommodation providers in Rother.  
 
We will continue to deliver or support related amenities such as car parks, parks and 
gardens, leisure facilities and museums; and we will continue to support the visitor 
economy through our statutory roles in Licensing, Planning, etc.  
 
As a partner and enabler: 
 
We will continue to support the 1066 Country Marketing Partnership through funding 
and officer time, and contribute to reviews of its marketing strategy.  We will also 
press for more private sector funding to help support the 1066 Country campaign. 
 
 

Page 6



cb190603 – Tourism Task and Finish Group  

We will support, fund and promote visitor events and festivals that aim to bring in 
additional visitors from outside the district.  Encouragement will be given to shoulder 
season events to help level out the seasonality of tourism in the area. 
 
We will continue to work with national and regional partners and networks to 
develop, deliver and promote projects and programmes relating to the visitor 
economy, cultural tourism and nature tourism.    
 
We will continue to work with local partnership groups and stakeholders who have a 
role in the promotion of the destination to visitors, where this activity is 
complementary to the 1066 Country campaign. 
 
We will work with developers and landowners to encourage the development of more 
serviced accommodation in the district, in accordance with Local Plan policies and 
Corporate Plan objectives. We will also encourage the development of new non-
traditional tourism products and services, including diversification of existing tourism 
businesses looking to respond to market changes.  This could include the 
development of ‘niche’ holiday accommodation and existing businesses looking to 
diversify to capitalise on market trends. 
 
We will encourage and support initiatives and attractions to increase visitor numbers, 
particularly staying visitors, where they support the objective to increase spend per 
head in the district.   
 
We will maximise the use of external funding opportunities where appropriate to 
support the development and delivery of tourism projects and initiatives across the 
area.    
 
As a deliverer of projects: 
 
We will continue to deliver the actions and projects set out in the Council’s Corporate 
Plan.  Specific projects linked to tourism include: 
 

 Coastal Environments, including improvements to East Parade, Bexhill.  

 Development of a new leisure centre and related facilities at Bexhill. 

 Economic Regeneration at Camber.  

 Development of a Walking and Cycling Strategy. 

 Combe Valley Countryside Park. 
 
We will continue to develop and deliver other projects in support of the visitor 
economy as opportunities arise. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



cb190603 – Call-In & Urgency Procedures  

Rother District Council 
 
Report to  - Cabinet  

Date  - 3 June 2019 

Report of the  - Executive Director  

Subject  - Call-in and Urgency Procedures 
 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 29 April 2019, considered a 
report on the Council’s Call-in and Urgency Procedures.  The recommendation and 
minute arising is reproduced below. 
 

 
Recommendation:  It be RESOLVED: That following the review of the Call-In 
Procedure, the current arrangements for calling-in an executive decision be 
confirmed. 
 

 
OSC18/54. CALL-IN AND URGENCY PROCEDURES 

 
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director on the 
Council’s Call-In and Urgency Procedures.  In accordance with 
Overview and Scrutiny Rule 17 (b) of the Constitution, the operation of 
the provisions relating to call-in and urgency was monitored annually 
through a report submitted to full Council via the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC). 
 
When this matter was considered the previous year, whilst it was 
agreed that the call-in procedure was working satisfactorily, the 
Committee requested that the procedure be amended to enable 
decisions to be called-in by any two non-executive Members of Council 
who need not be Members of the OSC.   
 
Cabinet agreed to support this recommendation to Council on the 
proviso that at least one of the two Members requesting a call-in must 
have been present at the Cabinet meeting in question and have heard 
first-hand the debate and reasons for decision and be subject to review 
after one year.  This was subsequently agreed by full Council in May 
2018 and the Constitution amended accordingly.   
 
The report therefore constituted both the annual requirement to monitor 
the procedure and carry out a review of the new provision after one 
years’ operation.   

 
The Call-In procedure was the mechanism by which the Council’s OSC 
could challenge decisions made by the Executive that were not yet 
implemented.  Thirteen Executive meetings had been held during the 
period of the report from 12 March 2018 up until 11 February 2019.  
Despite the revised provisions, no Executive decisions had been 
called-in during the period to which the report related; four decisions of 
Cabinet, within the approved budget and policy framework, had been 
deemed and resolved as urgent decisions.  
   

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



cb190603 – Call-In & Urgency Procedures  

Following discussion, it was agreed that the current arrangements for 
calling-in an executive decision remained satisfactory.   
 
(Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda Item 5.3). 

 
 
Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director 
 

Page 10



cb190603 - Role & Functions   

Rother District Council          
 
Report to  - Cabinet 

Date  - 3 June 2019 

Report of the  - Executive Directors   

Subject  - Role and Functions 
 

 
Recommendation: It be RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

 
Democratic Services Manager: Lisa Cooper 
Lead Cabinet Member: Councillor Doug Oliver 
 

 
Introduction  
 
1. As part of the 2019 Member Induction process a report outlining each of the 

pertinent Committee’s roles and responsibilities is being presented to the first 
meeting of each formal Council Committee in the new municipal year.  This 
will aid both newly elected Members to understand the differing roles and 
responsibilities of the various elements which make up the decision making 
structure at Rother and provides returned Members with a useful reminder.      

 
Decision Making Structure at Rother 
 
2. As a requirement of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council has 

operated an Executive Leader and Executive Cabinet model of decision 
making since November 2001.  Furthermore, in  accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007, the Council adopted the provisions of the “strong leader” Executive 
Leader and Executive Cabinet model, the key features being:   
 

 The Leader of the Council is elected for a four year term at the first post-
election annual Council meeting. 

 The Leader’s term of office ends on the day of the post-election annual 
meeting four years later (i.e. it runs for four years from the first annual 
meeting following the whole council elections to the next annual meeting 
following the whole council elections).   

 The Leader can only be removed from office by a resolution of the Council.  
If the Council passes a resolution to remove the Leader, a new Leader is 
to be elected at the meeting at which the Leader is removed from office, or 
at a subsequent meeting. 

 Two or more (up to a maximum of 10) Councillors of the authority must be 
appointed to the Cabinet by the Leader who will also determine the size of 
Cabinet within the statutory minimum and maximum.   

 The Leader is responsible for the allocation and discharge of all executive 
functions (i.e. what Cabinet portfolios will exist, how they will be allocated 
and delegations etc). 

 A Deputy Leader with the power to act in the Leader’s absence must be 
appointed (and may also be removed) by the Leader.  The Deputy Leader 
of the Council is not required to be a Member of the Cabinet. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



cb190603 - Role & Functions   

Role and Responsibilities 
 
3. The Cabinet makes all decisions on behalf of the Council, excluding those 

which by law it is unable to make, such as those in relation to regulatory 
functions, principally Planning and Licensing and those that have been 
delegated to officers.  All other decisions, providing that they are within the 
approved Policy and Budget Framework set by the full Council, are taken by 
the Cabinet.     

 
Cabinet Meetings 
 
4. The Cabinet is scheduled to meet 12 times per year, at times agreed by the 

Leader; currently meetings of Cabinet are usually held at 11:00am.  Some 
meetings have been held during the evening, either before or after other 
meetings to facilitate a requirement to make recommendation / decision by a 
specific deadline.  Additional meetings are also sometimes called to facilitate 
matters that require an urgent decision, prior to the next available meeting. 

 
Confidential Meetings 
 
5. In accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities (Executive 

Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012, all meetings of the Cabinet, and any committees or sub-committees 
thereof, are held in public except in limited prescribed circumstances where 
meetings can be closed and confidential items discussed.  The majority of 
decision making is in the public domain with very little being designated as 
confidential in accordance with the regulations.       

 

6. If the Council is minded to hold a Cabinet meeting or part thereof to consider 
a confidential matter in private, the Council has to give 28 calendar days’ clear 
notice; this is to allow the public to make representations about why the 
meeting should not be held in private session.  The notice has to be made 
available at the Council’s offices and published on the Council’s website and 
be sufficiently worded so that the nature of the item to be discussed is clear 
and to whom representations can be made.   
 

Cabinet Decision Making  
 
7. Meetings of the Cabinet are conducted in accordance with the Executive 

Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the Constitution.  The Council Procedure Rules, 
which apply to all other meetings of the Council, do not apply to meetings of 
the Cabinet.   

 
8. Under the “strong leader” model, the Leader is able to allocate decision-

making powers to individual Cabinet Members, although this has not been 
implemented at Rother District Council.  Currently, all Cabinet decisions are 
made collectively, by all Members of the Cabinet, unless delegated to officers.  
Under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012, any executive decisions made by 
officers under delegated authority must be recorded in writing and made 
available to the public at the council’s offices and on the website as soon as 
reasonably practical.   

 
9. Cabinet is able to take three types of “decision” at its meetings, namely: 

Page 12



cb190603 - Role & Functions   

1. Recommendations to Council – these are decisions which fall 
outside of the current budget and policy framework and require full 
Council approval, and are referred to the next full Council meeting for 
determination. 
 

2. Executive Decisions – these are the decisions of Cabinet which have 
been resolved and will come into force on the expiry of five clear 
working days, following publication of the Minutes, subject to the call-in 
procedure (see paragraph 10 below). 

 
3. Urgent Decisions – these are decisions which the Chairman of 

Council has agreed can be taken as a matter of urgency if any delay 
likely to be caused by the call-in process would seriously prejudice the 
Council’s or the public’s interests.  These decisions are therefore not 
subject to the call-in arrangements.  These decisions are reported to 
the next available full Council meeting for information.   

 
10. Cabinet Minutes are usually published on the Council’s website within two 

days following each meeting and notification is sent to all Members via email, 
with a direct link to the Minutes.  A five day call-in period then operates in 
which time the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) in 
his / her own right or any two non-executive Members of the Council, one of 
whom must have been present at the Cabinet meeting in question can 
request that an Executive decision can be called in.  This decision is then held 
in abeyance until the conclusion of the call-in procedure.  Details of the call-in 
procedure can be found in the Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rule 16. 
 

11. The operation of both the call-in and the urgent decision procedure are 
subject to an annual report to Council, via the OSC.   

 
Cabinet Agenda – what business? 
 
12. Executive Procedure Rule 10 dictates what business will be conducted at 

each meeting of the Executive.  As well as including basic requirements such 
as to agree the Minutes of the last meeting, it also ensures that reports from 
the OSC are considered. 

 
13. The Leader of the Council can put on the agenda of any Executive meeting 

any matter which he/she wishes, whether or not authority has been delegated 
to the Executive or an officer in respect of that matter.  The following can also 
request that items are placed on the Agenda: 

 
a. Any member of the Executive.  
 
b. The OSC or the Council.  
 
c. Any Member of the Council with the Leader’s agreement.  
 
d. The Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer may include an 

item for consideration on the agenda of an Executive meeting and may 
require the Head of Paid Service to call such a meeting in pursuance of 
their statutory duties. 

 

Page 13



cb190603 - Role & Functions   

Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
14. In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 

and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 the Council has to 
publish a document, known as the “Forward Plan of Key Decisions” to cover a 
period of four months, beginning with the first day of any month. It is prepared 
on a rolling four month basis.  The Forward Plan contains matters which the 
Leader believes will be the subject of a key decision to be taken by the 
Executive, officers, area Committees or under joint arrangements in the 
course of the discharge of an Executive function during the period covered by 
the plan.  

 
15. The purpose of the Forward Plan is to provide both members of the public and 

Members of the Council with early notice of when Key Decisions are going to 
be taken by the Executive.  This enables appropriate consultation with 
relevant stakeholders etc.   

 
16. A Key Decision is one to be made by either the Cabinet or an officer and is 

likely to result in significant expenditure or savings (in excess of £100,000) or 
to have significant effects on those living or working in an area comprising two 
or more wards.  Those decisions which are reserved for full Council do not 
have to be included – i.e. all decisions outside the current policy and budget 
framework.  Further information / details are to be found in Part 4 of the 
Constitution, Access to Information Rule 13. 

 
Attendance and Speaking at Cabinet by non Executive Members 
 
17. All Members of the Council are able to attend all meetings of the Cabinet, 

both open (non-confidential matters) and closed (confidential matters).  
 

18. The Cabinet is the decision making body of the Council.  It is not an 
opportunity for further debate and cross examination of officers by other 
Members present at meetings of the Cabinet.  The Executive Procedure 
Rules state that: 

 
“With the agreement of the Leader the following may speak at Executive 
meetings: 
 
(a) any Member of the Council (who is not a member of the Executive) for the 

purpose of speaking to an item, the inclusion of which the Member has 
requested and the Leader has agreed; 

 
(b) any Member of the Council (who is not a Member of the Executive) 

present at a meeting may address the Executive on any matter on the 
Agenda; and 

 
(c) the Chairman of the OSC for the purpose of presenting a report of the 

Committee to the Executive.” 
 
Openness and of Local Government Bodies Regulations - New Public Rights   
 
19. The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 amended the 

Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, s.100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the 2012 Regulations to allow any person to attend 

Page 14



cb190603 - Role & Functions   

a public meeting of a "relevant local government body", which includes District 
Councils, for the purposes of reporting, and allow any persons with the aim of 
reporting to use any communication methods, including the internet, to 
publish, post or otherwise share the results of their reporting activities, during 
or after the meeting. 
 

20. ‘Reporting’ is defined as: 

 filming, photographing or audio recording of proceedings;  

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear 
proceedings of a meeting as it takes place or later; and  

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings of a meeting, orally or 
in writing.   

 
21. The Regulations provided the Council with an opportunity to include these 

new provisions within the Constitution and to clarify the parameters under 
which this activity can take place.   

 
Conclusion 
 
22. It is hoped that non-Executive Members will benefit from this summary report 

of the role and function of the Cabinet and how it operates and are 
encouraged to attend meetings of the Executive, especially newly elected 
Members.  

 
 
 
Malcolm Johnston    Dr Anthony Leonard     
Executive Director    Executive Director   
 
Risk Assessment Statement 
There are no risks associated with this report. 
 

  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



cb190408 – Irrecoverable Debts  

Rother District Council 
 
Report to  - Cabinet   

Date   - 3 June 2019   

Report of the  - Executive Directors     

Subject  - Irrecoverable Debts  
 

 
Recommendation: It be RESOLVED: That the debts shown in Appendix 1 be 
approved for writing out of the accounts.  
 

 
Assistant Director Resources: Robin Vennard 
Lead Cabinet Member: Councillor Doug Oliver  
 

 
1. Any debt in excess of £4,000 can only be written out of the accounts with the 

consent of the Cabinet.  This treatment of the debt does not mean that the 
Council cannot take action in the future if information is received indicating that 
the amount can then be recovered.  Where it is apparent, however, that the 
debts are not going to be recovered, then it is financially prudent to exclude 
them from the accounts. 
 

2. Cabinet is asked to agree to write off cases relating to monies owed to the 
authority as attached at Appendix 1.  The following table summarises the total 
value to be written out of the accounts. 

 

TYPE OF DEBT TOTAL TO BE WRITTEN OFF 

Housing Benefit Overpayment £48,050.07 

Council Tax  £20,416.71 

National Non Domestic Rates £17,893.25 

Total   £86,360.03 

  

3. Members will be aware of the robust recovery processes that are in place 
before debts are written off.  Debt recovery work is undertaken in line with 
current Council policy and the Council’s work around debt recovery performs 
extremely well. 

 
4. Details of all the cases are available on request. 
 
 
Malcolm Johnston    Dr Anthony Leonard     
Executive Director    Executive Director   
 
Risk Assessment Statement 
The Council is a non-preferential debtor in bankruptcy and winding-up procedures, 
and the likelihood of a dividend in these circumstances is remote. Writing the 
amounts out of the accounts leaves a true picture of the size of debt where recovery 
is still likely. 

                                                                                             
Page 17

Agenda Item 9



cb190408 – Irrecoverable Debts  

Appendix 1  
 

 TYPE OF DEBT AMOUNT £ 

 HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENTS    

1 
The liable person was granted a debt relief order on 2 October 
2018 leaving no realistic prospect of recovery. 
Linked to Item 6. 

£4,761.44 

2 

This debt totals some £60,000 including costs and interest. 
The overpayment is being recovered but due to the level of 
annual repayments it is unlikely the entire debt is recoverable. 
It is proposed to reduce the debt by the value of the interest 
and costs.   

£11,297.12 

3 

The liable person was granted an Individual Voluntary 
Arrangement (IVA) on 26 July 2018 leaving no realistic 
prospect of recovery. 
Linked to Item 8. 

£3,002.26 

4 
The liable person was made bankrupt on 20 November 2018 
leaving no realistic prospect of recovery. 
Linked to Item 9. 

£6,393.54 

5 
The liable person died on 28 September 2018 leaving no funds 
in the estate to meet this debt. 

£22,595.71 

Total £48,050.07 

 Council Tax    

6 
The liable person was granted a debt relief order on 2 October 
2018 leaving no realistic prospect of recovery. 
Linked to Item 1. 

£4,897.33 

7 
The liable person was granted a debt relief order on 12 
September 2018 leaving no realistic prospect of recovery.  

£4,420.17 

8 

The liable person was granted an Individual Voluntary 
Arrangement (IVA) on 26 July 2018 leaving no realistic 
prospect of recovery. 
Linked to Item 3. 

£1,343.80 

9 
The liable person was made bankrupt on 20 November 2018 
leaving no realistic prospect of recovery. 
Linked to Item 4. 

£1,577.93 

10 
The liable person was granted an Individual Voluntary 
Arrangement (IVA) on 24 October 2018 leaving no realistic 
prospect of recovery. 

£8,177.48 

Total  £20,416.71 

 NNDR   

11 
The company was dissolved on 15 May 2018 leaving no 
realistic prospect of recovery. 

£5,903.92 

12 
The liable person was made bankrupt on 5 November 2018 
leaving no realistic prospect of recovery. 

£11,989.33 

Total £17,893.25 

Total to be written off £86,360.03 

 
 
 

Page 18



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Rother District Council 
  
Report to  -  Cabinet  

Date  -  3 June 2019  

Report of the  -  Executive Directors  

Subject  -  Treasury Management Update  

 

 
Recommendation to COUNCIL: That the revised authorised limit and operational 
boundary for external debt contained in the Treasury Management Strategy be 
approved. 
 

 
Head of Service: Assistant Director Resources: Robin Vennard  
Lead Cabinet Member: Councillor Doug Oliver 
 

 
Introduction  
 
1. Cabinet approved the Council’s 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement and Annual Investment Strategy in February this year (Appendix 
A).  In managing its treasury management activities, the Council follows the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017). 

 
2. By way of explanation, the Council is required to operate a balanced budget, 

which broadly means that cash raised during the year will meet cash 
expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure that this 
cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.  
Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

 
3. The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding 

of the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the 
borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, 
to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This 
management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-term 
loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is 
prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to 
meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
4. The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is 

critical, as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or 
the ability to meet spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-
day revenue or for larger capital projects.  The treasury operations will see a 
balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income arising from 
cash deposits affecting the available budget.  Since cash balances generally 
result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate 
security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result in a 
loss to the General Fund. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Review of Treasury Indicators – Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary 
 

5. Part of the Treasury Strategy sets the external debt (borrowing) limits for the 
Council. This takes account of the Council’s long term borrowing and any 
short term cash flow borrowing needs. The Council’s capital expenditure plans 
are the key driver for setting these limits.  The capital expenditure plans are 
reflected in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist Members’ 
overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. There are two limits that the 
Council sets; 

 
6. The operational boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 

not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure 
to the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), but may be lower or higher 
depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing 
by other cash resources. 

 
7. The authorised limit for external debt.  This is a key prudential indicator 

and represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents 
a legal limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to 
be set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term. 

 
8. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003.  The Government retains an option to control either the 
total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power 
has not yet been exercised. 

 
9. Following a review of the capital expenditure plans, particularly in relation to 

the property investment strategy and the likely timing of investments, 
Members are asked to recommend to full Council to increase the limits 
previously agreed (Appendix A paragraph 28) to the following: 
 

  
2018/19 

Forecast 
2019/20 
Budget 

2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Budget 

2023/24 
Budget 

  £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) 
Authorised 
Limit 40,900  57,400  67,300  67,300  67,300  67,300  
Operational 
boundary  37,000  52,000  61,000  61,000  61,000  61,000  

 
Conclusion  
 
10. The above changes ensure the Council’s treasury management and 

investment strategies remain robust in managing the Council’s cash funds 
and borrowing.  

   
 

Malcolm Johnston    Dr Anthony Leonard     
Executive Director    Executive Director   
 
Risk Assessment Statement  
There are no direct risks arising from this report.  

Page 20



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Appendix A 

Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 – Approved by Full Council 25 
February 2019 

1. The strategy for 2019/20 covers two main areas: 
 

a. Capital issues 

 the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 

 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

b. Treasury management issues 

 the current treasury position; 

 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the 
Council; 

 prospects for interest rates; 

 the borrowing strategy; 

 policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

 debt rescheduling; 

 the investment strategy; 

 creditworthiness policy; and 

 the policy on use of external service providers. 

 

2. These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, 
the CIPFA Prudential Code, Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

Training 

3. The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that Members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to Members responsible for scrutiny of 
the treasury management function.  Training has been undertaken by 
Members in June 2018 on the legislation and treasury activities of the Council 
and further training will be arranged after the election of a new Council in May 
2019. The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed.  

Treasury management consultants 

4. The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as its external 
treasury management advisors. 
 

5. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance 
is not placed upon the services of our external service providers. All decisions 
will be undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not 
solely, our treasury advisers. 

 
6. It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 

Page 21



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review. 
  

7. The scope of investments within the Council’s operations now includes both 
conventional treasury investments, (the placing of residual cash from the 
Council’s functions), and more commercial type investments, such as investment 
properties in support of its Property Investment Strategy.  The commercial type 
investments require specialist advisers, and the Council uses appropriately 
qualified companies in relation to this activity. 

 
The Capital Prudential Indicators  
 

8. The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected 
in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist Members’ overview 
and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

Capital expenditure 

9. This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.   

 

 2018/19 
forecast 

2019/20 
budget 

2020/21 
budget 

2021/22 
budget 

2022/23 
budget 

2023/24 
budget 

General Fund 
Services 

4,614 7,447 535 238 238 238 

Regeneration 
Investments 

2,512 12,488 20,000 0 0 0 

TOTAL 7,126 19,935 20,535 238 238 238 

 
10. The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how 

these plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall 
of resources results in a funding borrowing need.  

 

The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 
 
11. The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s indebtedness and so its 
underlying borrowing need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not 
immediately been paid for through a revenue or capital resource, will increase 
the CFR.   
 

12. The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision 
(MRP) is a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the 

 2018/19 
forecast 

2019/20 
budget 

2020/21 
budget 

2021/22 
budget 

2023/24 
budget 

External Sources 1,429  3,497  0 0 0 

Own Resources 3,138 3,950 535 238 238 

Borrowing  2,559  12,488  20,000  0 0 

TOTAL 7,126 19,935 20,535 238 238 

Page 22



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

indebtedness in line with each assets life, and so charges the economic 
consumption of capital assets as they are used. 

 
13. The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 

leases). Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing 
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility by the PFI, 
PPP lease provider and so the Council is not required to separately borrow for 
these schemes. The Council currently does not have any such schemes 
within the CFR. 
 

14. The CFR projections are shown below: 
 

 31.3.19 
forecast 

31.3.20 
budget 

31.3.21 
budget 

31.3.22 
budget 

31.3.23 
budget 

31.3.24 
budget 

General Fund 
Services# 

1,138 1,136 1,134 1,132 1,130 1,128 

Regen 
Investments 

2,512 15,000 34,844 34,553 34,038 33,511 

TOTAL 3,650 16,136 35,978 35,685 35,168 34,639 
#including adjustment “A” £1.091m 

 
Movement in CFR 

 31.3.19 
forecast 

31.3.20 
budget 

31.3.21 
budget 

31.3.22 
budget 

31.3.23 
budget 

31.3.24 
budget 

Net financing 
need for the year 
(above) 

3,650 16,136 35,978 35,685 35,168 34,639 

Less MRP/VRP 
and other 
financing 
movements 

0 156  291  515  527 540  

Movement in 
CFR 

3,650 15,980 35,687 35,170 34,641 34,099 

 
15. A key aspect of the regulatory and professional guidance is that elected 

Members are aware of the size and scope of any commercial activity in 
relation to the authority’s overall financial position.  The capital expenditure 
figures shown in above and the details above demonstrate the scope of this 
activity and, by approving these figures, consider the scale proportionate to 
the Authority’s remaining activity. 
 

Affordability Prudential Indicator 
 
16. Prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the capital 

investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the capital 
investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked to 
approve the following indicator: 

 
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 
17. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other 

long term obligation costs net of investment income), against the net revenue 
stream. 

  

Page 23



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

 
2018/19 
forecast 

2019/20 
budget 

2020/21 
budget 

2021/22 
budget 

2022/23 
budget 

2023/24 
budget 

Financing costs 
(£000) 

64 376 1,163 1,380 1,379 1,379 

Proportion of net 
revenue stream 

0.5% 2.5% 8.6% 10.5% 10.4% 10.3% 

 
18. The table shows that the proportion of the Council’s net revenue stream 

(Council Tax, share of business rates and grants) at risk increases to over 
10% due to the investments made under the Property Investment Strategy. 

 
Core Funds and Expected Investment Balances 
  
19. The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 

capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the Revenue Budget 
will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are 
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below 
are estimates of the year-end balances for each resource and anticipated 
day-to-day cash flow balances. 
 

Year End Resources 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£m Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Fund balances / reserves -14,781 -11,670 -9,756 -8,520 -7,552 -6,902 

Capital receipts -2,725 -845 -895 -945 -995 -1,045 

Provisions -700 -700 -700 -700 -700 -700 

Total core funds -18,206 -13,215 -11,351 -10,165 -9,247 -8,647 

Working capital -1,800 -1,800 -1,800 -1,800 -1,800 -1,800 

Expected investments -20,006 -15,015 -13,151 -11,965 -11,047 -10,447 

Working capital balances shown are estimated year-end; these may be higher mid-year 

 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 
 
20. The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 

Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake 
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP). 
   

21. MHCLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to 
approve an MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are 
provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  The Council is 
recommended to approve the following MRP Statement: 
 

22. From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 
leases if entered into) the MRP policy will be: 

 
Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations; this provides for a reduction in the borrowing 
need over approximately the assets’ life. Note that for the Council’s 
commercial type investments in support of the Council’s Property Investment 
Strategy MRP will be based on an annuity based method over the assets life. 
 
MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP 
Guidance made allowance for any charges made over the statutory minimum 

Page 24



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

revenue provision (MRP), voluntary revenue provision or overpayments, can, 
if needed, to be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent.  In 
order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must 
disclose the cumulative overpayment made each year.  Up until the 31 March 
2019 the total VRP overpayments were nil.  

 

Borrowing 
 
23. The capital expenditure plans set out above provide details of the service 

activity of the Council. The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional 
codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the 
Council’s capital strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash 
flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate 
borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential 
indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual investment 
strategy. 

 

  
Actual 
£’000 

31.3.18 

Actual % 
Actual 
£’000 Actual % 

15.1.19 
31.3.18 15.1.19 

Treasury Investments         

Nat West 5,018 30.3% 2,000 8.4% 

Lloyds Bank Plc. 6,242 37.7% 3,500 14.7% 

Bank of Scotland 5,300 32.0% 5,300 22.3% 

Santander UK plc. 2 0.0% 4,951 20.8% 

Barclays Bank 1 0.0% 1 0.0% 

TOTAL managed funds in-house 16,563 100.0% 15,752 66.3% 

Property Funds 0 0.0% 8,000 33.7% 

TOTAL treasury investments 16,563 100.0% 23,752 100.0% 

Treasury External Borrowing         

PWLB 0 0% 900 100% 

NET Treasury investments 16,563   22,852   

 
24. The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The 

table shows the actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing 
need, (the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or 
under borrowing. 
  

 31.3.19 
forecast 

31.3.20 
budget 

31.3.21 
budget 

31.3.22 
budget 

31.3.23 
budget 

31.3.24 
budget 

Gross Debt  2,559 14,846 35,648 35,135 34,610 34,072 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

3,650 15,982 36,782 36,267 35,740 35,200 

 
25. Within the above figures the level of debt relating to commercial activities / 

non-financial investment is: 
 
 

Page 25



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

 31.3.19 
forecast 

31.3.20 
budget 

31.3.21 
budget 

31.3.22 
budget 

31.3.23 
budget 

31.3.24 
budget 

External Debt for commercial activities / non-financial investments  

Actual debt at 31 
March £m  

2,512 14,846 35,648 35,135 34,610 34,072 

Percentage of total 
external debt % 

99% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
26. Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators 

to ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  
One of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus 
the estimates of any additional CFR for 2019/20 and the following two financial 
years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. 
       

27. The Assistant Director, Resources (Chief Finance Officer) reports that the 
Council complied with this prudential indicator in the current year and does 
not envisage difficulties for the future.  This view takes into account current 
commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report. 
   

Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 
 
28. The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not 

normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to 
the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt 
and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources. 
 

 2018/19 
limit 

2019/20 
limit 

2020/21 
limit 

2021/22 
limit 

2022/23 
limit 

2023/24 
limit 

Commercial 
activities/ non-
financial 
investments 

6,000 20,000 41,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 

GF Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Authorised limit – 
total external debt 

16,000 30,000 51,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

 
29. The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and 

represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a 
legal limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be 
set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, 
while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in 
the longer term. 
   

30. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either the 
total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power 
has not yet been exercised. 
 

31. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 
 

 

Page 26



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

 2018/19 
limit 

2019/20 
limit 

2020/21 
limit 

2021/22 
limit 

2022/23 
limit 

2023/24 
limit 

Commercial 
activities/ non-
financial 
investments 

6,000 20,000 41,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 

GF Services 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

Authorised limit 
– total external 
debt 

21,000 35,000 56,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 

 
Prospects for interest rates 
 
32. The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and 

part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates. The following table gives our central view. 

 

 
 

33. The flow of generally positive economic statistics after the quarter ended 30 
June 2018 meant that it came as no surprise that the MPC came to a decision 
on 2 August to make the first increase in Bank Rate above 0.5% since the 
financial crash, from 0.5% to 0.75%. Growth became increasingly strong 
during 2018 until slowing significantly during the last quarter. At their 
November quarterly Inflation Report meeting, the MPC left Bank Rate 
unchanged, but expressed some concern at the Chancellor’s fiscal stimulus in 
his Budget, which could increase inflationary pressures.  However, it is 
unlikely that the MPC would increase Bank Rate in February 2019, ahead of 
the deadline in March for Brexit. On a major assumption that Parliament and 
the EU agree a Brexit deal in the first quarter of 2019, then the next increase 
in Bank Rate is forecast to be in May 2019, followed by increases in February 
and November 2020, before ending up at 2.0% in February 2022. 

 
34. The overall longer run future trend is for gilt yields, and consequently PWLB 

rates, to rise, albeit gently.  However, over about the last 25 years, we have 
been through a period of falling bond yields as inflation subsided to, and then 
stabilised at, much lower levels than before, and supported by central banks 
implementing substantial quantitative easing purchases of government and 
other debt after the financial crash of 2008.  Quantitative easing, conversely, 
also caused a rise in equity values as investors searched for higher returns 
and purchased riskier assets.  In 2016, we saw the start of a reversal of this 
trend with a sharp rise in bond yields after the US Presidential election in 
November 2016, with yields then rising further as a result of the big increase 
in the US government deficit aimed at stimulating even stronger economic 

Page 27



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

growth. That policy change also created concerns around a significant rise in 
inflationary pressures in an economy which was already running at 
remarkably low levels of unemployment. Unsurprisingly, the Fed has 
continued on its series of robust responses to combat its perception of rising 
inflationary pressures by repeatedly increasing the Fed rate to reach 2.25 – 
2.50% in December 2018.  It has also continued its policy of not fully 
reinvesting proceeds from bonds that it holds as a result of quantitative 
easing, when they mature.  We therefore saw US 10 year bond Treasury 
yields rise above 3.2% during October 2018 and also investors causing a 
sharp fall in equity prices as they sold out of holding riskier assets. However, 
by early January 2019, US 10 year bond yields had fallen back considerably 
on fears that the Fed was being too aggressive in raising interest rates and 
was going to cause a recession. Equity prices have been very volatile on 
alternating good and bad news during this period. 

 
35. From time to time, gilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to 

exceptional levels of volatility due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis, 
emerging market developments and sharp changes in investor sentiment. 
Such volatility could occur at any time during the forecast period. 

 
36. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external 

influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), 
will be liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and 
developments in financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical 
developments, especially in the EU, could also have a major impact. 
Forecasts for average investment earnings beyond the three-year time 
horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and political developments.  

 
Investment and borrowing rates 
 
37. Investment returns are likely to remain low during 2019/20 but to be on a 

gently rising trend over the next few years. Borrowing interest rates have been 
volatile so far in 2018-19 and while they were on a rising trend during the first 
half of the year, they have backtracked since then until early January.  The 
policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has 
served well over the last few years.  However, this needs to be carefully 
reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when 
authorities may not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital 
expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing debt. There will remain a cost 
of carry, (the difference between higher borrowing costs and lower investment 
returns), to any new long-term borrowing that causes a temporary increase in 
cash balances as this position will, most likely, incur a revenue cost. 

 
Borrowing Strategy  
 
38. The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means 

that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not 
been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, 
balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure. This 
strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is still 
an issue that needs to be considered. 
 

39. Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution 
will be adopted with the 2019/20 treasury operations. The Assistant Director, 

Page 28



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Resources will monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a 
pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: 

 

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and 
short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse 
into recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short 
term borrowing will be considered. 
 

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long 
and short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an 
acceleration in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an 
increase in world economic activity, or a sudden increase in inflation risks, 
then the portfolio position will be re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate 
funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than they are projected 
to be in the next few years. 

 
40. Any decisions will be reported to Cabinet and the Audit and Standards 

Committee at the next available opportunity. 
 
Policy on borrowing in advance of need  
 
41. The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in 

order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision 
to borrow in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing 
Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value 
for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security 
of such funds. 

 
42. Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 

appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

 
Debt rescheduling 
 
43. As short-term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term 

fixed interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings 
by switching from long-term debt to short-term debt.  However, these savings 
will need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the 
size of the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  

 
44. The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include: 

  

 the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

 enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility). 

 
45. Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 

making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt 
prematurely as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than 
rates paid on current debt.  All rescheduling will be reported to Cabinet and 
the Audit and Standards Committee at the earliest meeting following its 

Page 29



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

action. At present this is not required as the Council has only recently entered 
into its only loan with PWLB. 

Page 30



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Appendix B 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
Investment policy – management of risk 
 
1. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and 

CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial 
and non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with financial 
investments, (as managed by the treasury management team).  Non-financial 
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered 
in the Capital Strategy, (a separate report). 

 
2. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: 

 MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the 
 Guidance”) 

 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and 
 Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  

 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   
 
3. The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity 

second and then yield, (return). 
  
4. The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the 

management of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to 
managing risk and defines its risk appetite by the following means: - 

 
a. Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list 

of highly creditworthy counterparties.  This also enables diversification and 
thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor 
counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings.   

 
b. Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality 

of an institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the 
financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the 
economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion 
of the markets. To achieve this consideration the Council will engage with 
its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit 
default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  

 
c. Other information sources used will include the financial press, share 

price and other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order 
to establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential 
investment counterparties. 

 
d. This authority has defined the list of types of investment instruments 

that the treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two 
lists in appendix 1 under the categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ 
investments.  

 

 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and 
subject to a maturity limit of one year. 

 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, 
may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex 

Page 31



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

instruments which require greater consideration by members and 
officers before being authorised for use. 
 

e. Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will 
limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as shown 
in Appendix 1,  

 
f. Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty will be set 

through applying the matrix table below 
 
g. Transaction limits are set for each type of investment. 
 
h. This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are 

invested for longer than 365 days. 
 

i. Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a 
specified minimum sovereign rating. 

 
j. This authority has engaged external consultants, to provide expert 

advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and 
yield, given the risk appetite of this authority in the context of the expected 
level of cash balances and need for liquidity throughout the year. 

 
k. All investments will be denominated in sterling. 
 
l. As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2018/19 under IFRS 

9, this authority will consider the implications of investment instruments 
which could result in an adverse movement in the value of the amount 
invested and resultant charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. 
(In November 2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government, [MHCLG], concluded a consultation for a temporary override 
to allow English local authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled 
investments by announcing a statutory override to delay implementation of 
IFRS 9 for five years commencing from 1.4.18.)  

 
5. However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury 

management and will monitor the yield from investment income against 
appropriate benchmarks for investment performance, (see paragraph 4.5). 
Regular monitoring of investment performance will be carried out during the 
year. 

Creditworthiness policy 

6. This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset 
Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising 
credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard & Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented 
with the following overlays:  

 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most 
creditworthy countries. 

Page 32



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

7. This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit Watches and credit 
Outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an 
overlay of CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded 
bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These 
colour codes are used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for 
investments.  The Council will therefore use counterparties within the 
following durational bands:  

 
 Yellow  5 years 
 Dark pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit 

   score of 1.25 
 Light pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit 

   score of 1.5 
 Purple  2 years 
 Blue   1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised 
    UK Banks) 
 Orange 1 year 
 Red   6 months 
 Green   100 days   
 No colour  not to be used  

 
8. The Link Asset Services’ creditworthiness service uses a wider array of 

information other than just primary ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk 
weighted scoring system, it does not give undue preponderance to just one 
agency’s ratings. 

 
9. Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short 

Term rating (Fitch or equivalents) of   F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There 
may be occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are 
marginally lower than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances, 
consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other 
topical market information, to support their use. 

 
10. All credit ratings are monitored regularly. The Council is alerted to changes to 

ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services’ 
creditworthiness service. If a downgrade results in the counterparty / 
investment scheme no longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its 
further use as a new investment will be withdrawn immediately. In addition to 
the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and 
other market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided 
exclusively to it by Link Asset Services. Extreme market movements may 
result in downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 
Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition 
this Council will also use market data and market information, information on 
any external support for banks to help support its decision making process.  

 

 Colour 
£limit or % of 

Fund Limit 
Time 
Limit 

Banks and Building 
Societies – part 
nationalised 

Blue 30% 1 yr 

Banks and Building 
Societies 

Red 50% 6 months 

Page 33



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Banks and Building 
Societies 

Green 50% 100 days 

Banks and Building 
Societies 

No colour Not to be used N/A 

Council’s banker  Not applicable Unlimited/ 100% 1 day 

 
UK banks – ring fencing 
 
11. The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and 

Medium-sized Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK law, to 
separate core retail banking services from their investment and international 
banking activities by 1st January 2019. This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst 
smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits are exempt, they can choose 
to opt up. Several banks are very close to the threshold already and so may 
come into scope in the future regardless. 

 
12. Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global 

financial crisis. It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from 
investment banking, in order to improve the resilience and resolvability of 
banks by changing their structure. In general, simpler, activities offered from 
within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be focused on lower risk, day-to-day 
core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier” activities are required to 
be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank, (NRFB). This is 
intended to ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely affected by 
the acts or omissions of other members of its group. 

 
13. While the structure of the banks included within this process may have 

changed, the fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will 
continue to assess the new-formed entities in the same way that it does 
others and those with sufficiently high ratings, (and any other metrics 
considered), will be considered for investment purposes. 

 
Country limits 
 
14. The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 

countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch. The list of 
countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are 
shown in Appendix 2.  This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers 
should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

 
15. The Council’s available funds will be spread among different counterparties in 

order to minimise the risk of loss. 
 
Use of additional information other than credit ratings 
  
16. Additional requirements under the Code require the Council to supplement 

credit rating information.  Whilst the above criteria relies primarily on the 
application of credit ratings to provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for 
officers to use, additional operational market information will be applied before 
making any specific investment decision from the agreed pool of 
counterparties. This additional market information (for example Credit Default 
Swaps, negative rating Watches/Outlooks) will be applied to compare the 
relative security of differing investment counterparties. 
 

Page 34



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Investment Strategy 
 
17. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 

requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by 
investing for longer periods. While part of the cash balances are required in 
order to manage the ups and downs of cash flow, where cash sums can be 
identified that could be invested for longer periods, the value to be obtained 
from longer term investments will be carefully assessed. If it is thought that 
Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon being 
considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments as 
being short term or variable. Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely 
to fall within that time period, consideration will be given to locking in higher 
rates currently obtainable, for longer periods. 

Investment returns expectations  
 
18. Bank Rate is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years 

to reach 2.00% by quarter 1 2022.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year 
ends (March) are:  

 

 2018/19  0.75%   

 2019/20  1.25% 

 2020/21  1.50% 

 2021/22  2.00%   

 
19. The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on 

investments placed for periods up to about three months during each financial 
year are as follows:  

 
 Now  
2018/19  0.75%   
2019/20  0.75% to 1.00%   
2020/21  1.50%   
2021/22  1.75%   
2022/23  1.75%   
2023/24  2.00%   
Later years  2.50%   

 
20. The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably neutral. 

The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates, 
are probably also even and are dependent on how strong GDP growth turns 
out, how slowly inflation pressures subside, and how quickly the Brexit 
negotiations move forward positively. 
  

21. Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s 
liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, 
and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit:  
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 365 days 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Principal sums invested > 365 days £10,000,000 £10,000,000 £10,000,000 

 
22. For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its instant 

access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits, 
(overnight to 100 days), in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.   

Investment risk benchmarking 
 
23. This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment 

performance of its investment portfolio of 7 day rate for cash deposit 
investments.  

End of year investment report 

24. At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment 
activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

 
Policy on the use of external service providers 
 
25. The Council uses Link Asset Services as its external treasury management 

advisors. 
 

26. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance 
is not placed upon our external service providers.  

 
27. It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of 

treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills 
and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment 
and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 
and documented, and subjected to regular review. 

 
Scheme of delegation 
 
28. Please see Appendix 3. 
 
Role of the Section 151 Officer 
 
29. Please see Appendix 4. 

 

  

Page 36



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Appendix 1 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE – CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK 
 
Specified Investments:   
1. All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum of one 

year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 

  

2. A variety of investment instruments will be used, subject to the credit quality of the 
institution, and depending on the type of investment made, it will fall into one of the 
following categories shown below: 

  
Minimum credit 
criteria / colour 
band 

** Max % of total investments/ £ 
limit per institution 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

DMADF – UK 
Government 

N/A 100% 6 months 

UK Government 
gilts 

UK sovereign rating  50% 
1 year 
subject to 
guidance 

UK Government 
Treasury bills 

UK sovereign rating  20% 
1 year 
subject to 
guidance 

Bonds issued by 
multilateral 
development 
banks 

AAA  20% 
1 year 
subject to 
guidance 

Money Market 
Funds  CNAV 

AAA 20% Liquid 

Money Market 
Funds  LVAV 

AAA 20% Liquid 

Money Market 
Funds  VNAV 

AAA 20% Liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated 
Bond Funds 

AAA 20% Liquid 
with a credit score 
of 1.25  

Ultra-Short Dated 
Bond Funds with a 
credit score of 1.5   

AAA 20% Liquid 

Local authorities N/A 50%/ £2M 
12 
months   

UK Banks and 
building societies 

Refer to 
Creditworthiness 
Policy 

100%, Unlimited with Council’s own 
banker, £5m limit in UK banks and 
building societies other than the 
Council’s subsidiaries where is £10m   

1 year 

Term deposits with 
banks and building 
societies 

Refer to 
Creditworthiness 
Policy 

100%, £5m limit in UK banks and 
building societies other than the 
Council’s own banker.  £10 m in the 
Council’s own bank and its 
subsidiaries, £2m in foreign banks 

1 year 

CDs or corporate 
bonds  with banks 
and building 
societies 

Refer to 
Creditworthiness 
Policy 

20% 1 year 

 
  

Page 37



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Non-specified investments: – are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
specified above).  The identification and rationale supporting the selection of these 
other investments and the maximum limits to be applied are set out below.  Non 
specified investments would include any sterling investments with: 

 

 Non Specified Investment Category Limit (£ or %) 

a.  

Supranational bonds greater than 1 year to maturity 

(a) Multilateral development bank bonds – these are bonds 
defined as an international financial institution having as one of 
its objects economic development, either generally or in any 
region of the world (e.g. European Reconstruction and 
Development Bank etc.).   

(b) A financial institution that is guaranteed by the United 
Kingdom Government (e.g. National Rail, the Guaranteed 
Export Finance Company [GEFCO]) 

The security of interest and principal on maturity is on a par with 
the Government and so very secure.  These bonds usually 
provide returns above equivalent gilt edged securities.  
However the value of the bond may rise or fall before maturity 
and losses may accrue if the bond is sold before maturity.   

AAA long term 
ratings (or 
other of your 
choice) 

b.  
The Council’s own banker if it fails to meet the basic credit 
criteria.  In this instance balances will be minimised as far as is 
possible. 

 

c.  
Certificates of deposit issued by banks and building societies.  
Refer to Creditworthiness Policy 

£3m – 10% of 
fund 

d.  

Property funds – the use of these instruments can be deemed 
to be capital expenditure, and as such will be an application 
(spending) of capital resources.  This Authority will seek 
guidance on the status of any fund it may consider using. 

Specific 
authorisation 
required from 
Members 

e.  

Property purchases. The criteria for any purchase of property 
for investment purposes will meet the following broad criteria in 
the approved Property Investment Strategy (PIS).  Appropriate 
due diligence will also be undertaken before investment of this 
type is undertaken. 

In accordance 
with the PIS 
governance 
arrangements 

 
NOTE 1: The Council will seek further advice on the appropriateness and associated 
risks with investments in these categories. 
  

Page 38



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Appendix 2 

APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENTS 

 

Based on lowest available rating 
 

AAA                      

 Australia 

 Canada 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Netherlands  

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

 Finland 

 U.S.A. 

 

AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 Hong Kong 

 U.K. 

 

AA- 

 Belgium  

 Qatar 

     

AS AT 21.1.19 

  

Page 39



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Appendix 3 
Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
 
1. Full Council 
 

 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities; and 
 

 approval of annual strategy. 
 
2. Cabinet 
 

 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices; 
 

 budget consideration and approval; 
 

 approval of the division of responsibilities; and 
 

 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 
appointment. 

 
3. Audit and Standards Committee  
 

 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body; and 
 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations. 

 
4. Executive Directors, and Assistant Director, Resources (Section 151 

Officer) 
 

 In the event that a counterparty, subsequent to an investment being made, 
falls below the minimum ratings required the following action is delegated 
to the Executive Directors or in his absence the Section 151 Officer; 
 

 Fixed term deposits – allow the investment to mature and not withdraw its 
funding unless advised otherwise by the Council’s treasury advisors; and 
 

 In all situations the Section 151 Officer, Executive Directors will take the 
best course of action to protect the value of the investment based on 
advice received from the Council’s treasury advisors. 

 

  

Page 40



cb190603 – Treasury Management Update 

Appendix 4 
THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
The S151 (responsible) officer duties include: 
 

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports 

 submitting budgets and budget variations 

 receiving and reviewing management information reports 

 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function 

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function 

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit 

 recommending the appointment of external service providers 

 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 
non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe  

 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent 
in the long term and provides value for money 

 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority 

 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure 
on non-financial assets and their financing 

 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level 
of risk compared to its financial resources 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and 
long term liabilities 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial 
guarantees. 

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk 
exposures taken on by an authority 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following: 
o Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and risk 

management criteria for any material non-treasury investment portfolios; 
o Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules), 

including methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and 
success of non-treasury investments;          

o Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules), 
including a statement of the governance requirements for decision making in 
relation to non-treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that 
appropriate professional due diligence is carried out to support decision 
making; 

o Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including 
where and how often monitoring reports are taken; and 

o Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the 
relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will be 
arranged. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Recommendations of the Tourism Task and Finish Group
	7 Call-in and Urgency Procedures
	8 Roles and Functions
	9 Irrecoverable Debts
	10 Treasury Management Update

